
April 23, 2008
MEMBERS PRESENT: Mr. Bedini, Mrs. D. Hill, Mr. LaMuniere, Mr. Picton, Mr. Thomson 

ALTERNATES PRESENT: Mr. Bohan, Mr. Wadelton 

STAFF PRESENT: Mr. Ajello, Mrs. J. Hill 

ALSO PRESENT: Mr. Neff, Mr. Wilson 

Mr. Picton called the Meeting to order at 7:06 p.m. and seated Members Bedini, Hill, LaMuniere, 
Picton, and Thomson. 

MOTION: To add the following subsequent business to the agenda: New Application: Pinover/12 Senff 
Road/Stonework and Landscaping and Other Business: Discussion Re: Land Use Administration. By 
Mr. Bedini, seconded by Mrs. Hill, and passed 5-0. 

Consideration of the Minutes 

The 4/9/08 Regular Meeting minutes were accepted as corrected. 

Page 10: 4th line under Ebner: Insert: "wide" after "50 ft." 

Page 10: 1st line: Change "not" to "no." 

MOTION: To accept the 4/9/08 Regular Meeting minutes as corrected. By Mr. Bedini, seconded by 
Mrs. Hill, and passed 4-0-1. Mr. Picton abstained. 

Pending Applications 

Gruson/62 Frisbie Road/#IW-08-10/Pond Maintenance: Mr. Neff, engineer, presented a revised 
plan, "Pond Maintenance Plan," by Mr. Neff, revised to 4/18/08, which included a deposit area on the 
west side of old Frisbie Road in a more gently sloping area than where it had originally been proposed. 
Mr. Neff explained that the top soil would be stripped, the excavated material spread, and then the top 
soil would be respread. Mr. Picton asked if the top soil could remain in place. Mr. Neff responded that 
it would be too compressed if not removed. He noted the work would be done quickly during the driest 
time of year so that the area would be unstable for only a brief time. A second revision was a note that 
red maples would be planted to provide shade around the northeast third of the pond. Mr. Neff stated 
that this would be in addition to the 1:4 side slopes at the north end of the pond to support emergent 
plant growth. Details on the repair of the dam were modified in the sequence of construction to include 
a 6 ft. reinforced concrete extension of the dam into the bank on the east side where the erosion was 
occurring. Mr. LaMuniere noted the drain would not be opened to flush out the pond, but asked if it 
would remain. Mr. Neff said the notes on the plan indicated it would remain because it is sealed now 
and if disturbed there would be the potential that a lot of sediment could wash downstream. In response 
to Mr. Picton's suggestion made at the last meeting, Mr. Neff stated that the pond was not large enough 
to attempt to save some of the wildlife by doing the work in sections. He noted, too, that even if the 
work was done in sections, there was no way to ensure the wildlife would move to safety on its own. 
He said the fish would be netted and taken to another pond. Mr. Picton noted for the record that the 
plans state that the drain would not be opened and there would be no increase in the size of the pond. 

MOTION: To approve Application #IW-08-10 submitted by Mr. Gruson for pond maintenance at 62 
Frisbie Road as proposed on the map, "Pond Maintenance Plan," by Mr. Neff, revised to 4/18/08. By 
Mr. Bedini, seconded by Mrs. Hill, and passed 5-0. 

Hock-Fiedorowicz/49 Mt. Tom Road/#IW-08-15/Driveway Crossing: Mr. Wilson, engineer, 
submitted his revised map, "Driveway Wetland Crossing," revised to 4/21/08. He said it now showed 



the limit of clearing and grading. He explained the proposed culvert would be covered with a minimum 
of 24 inches of material; 18 inches of which would be the coarse base. Mr. Picton asked if this could be 
reduced to 12 inches. Mr. Wilson said, no, because a minimum of 18 inches was required to spread the 
weight over the culvert so it would not be crushed by heavy vehicles. He also said that 24 inches would 
accommodate utility lines in the future. He noted the size of the new culvert was double the capacity of 
the existing culvert, which would increase the speed of the runoff and so require the rip rapped outlet. 
Mr. LaMuniere asked if a second culvert would be necessary. Mr. Wilson said the area Mr. LaMuniere 
was concerned about was a forebay for the pond to take road runoff and he would prefer to leave it as is 
so it could be used for infiltration. Mr. LaMuniere asked if the soils were porous enough to enable the 
runoff to infiltrate. Mr. Wilson said, yes, it was gravel. Mr. Wilson explained the silt fence had been 
placed along the contour below the limit of grading, but above the wetlands. The area immediately 
adjacent to the driveway, about 8 feet on each side, would not have silt fence, but was very rocky and 
would be seeded and mulched as soon as possible. Mr. Picton asked Mr. Ajello to go out to the site to 
inspect during construction and to require improvements if necessary. Mr. LaMuniere asked what 
would be done with the stone from the cuts. Mr. Wilson said it would be used elsewhere on site. After a 
brief discussion, it was determined that no bond would be required. However, Mr. Picton asked Mr. 
Ajello to look into a system for the routine requirement of bonds to ensure the successful completion of 
Inland Wetlands permitted projects. 

MOTION: To approve Application #IW-08-15 submitted by Ms. Hock and Mr. Fiedorowicz for a 
driveway crossing at 49 Mt. Tom Road per the map, "Driveway Wetland Crossing," by Mr. Wilson, 
revised to 4/21/08. By Mr. Bedini, seconded by Mr. LaMuniere, passed 5-0. 

Redstone/83 West Morris Road/#IW-08-16/Inground Pool: It was noted there was no new 
information and there had been no questions raised at the last meeting. Mr. Picton stated that the 
applicant had been asked to move the silt fence half way between the pool and the wetlands. Mr. Ajello 
said this would not be a problem because the area was lawn with heavy grass close to the wetlands. 

MOTION: To approve Application #IW-08-16 submitted by Mr. and Mrs. Redstone for an inground 
pool at 83 West Morris Road with the conditions that in order to create an undisturbed natural area at 
least 35 ft. wide along the wetlands, that the silt fence be the limit of disturbance and that it be installed 
no less than 35 feet from the wetlands. By Mr. Picton, seconded by Mr. LaMuniere, and passed 5-0. 

New Applications 

Lancaster/244 West Shore Road/#IW-08-17/Floating Dock Replacement: Mr. Neff, engineer, 
submitted the map, "Floating Dock Replacement Plan," dated 4/21/08. Mr. Picton noted that the 
Commission had concluded that the clearing that had previously been done on this property had not 
caused so much damage that enforcement action had to be taken. Photos of the shoreline were 
circulated and Mr. Neff explained that the dock would be tucked into the inlet. He said this was a flat 
area that was terraced out with existing walls and he proposed a 2 ft. deep concrete anchor block at the 
edge of the shoreline. This would be higher than the elevation of the old concrete dock. Mr. Neff said 
the anchor would be set flush with the grade and the slope. He reviewed the detailed sequence of 
construction. Mr. Picton did not think a site inspection would be necessary. Mr. Neff noted this was a 
very visible location if individual members wanted to see it before the next meeting. 

Pinover/12 Senff Road/#IW-08-18/Retaining walls, Landscaping: The 4/22/08 letter from Mr. 
Rosiello, contractor, to the Commission and his plans, Stone Retaining Wall, Cross Section Detail," 
undated and "Retaining Fieldstone Walls and Planting, Pinover Residence," dated April 2008 were 
reviewed. It appeared the closest the proposed work would come to the stream would be 35 ft. Mr. 
Ajello said he had not recently inspected the site and Mr. Picton asked that he do so before the next 
meeting. Mr. LaMuniere thought the Commission should conduct a site inspection because the property 



is so steep. The Commission decided to wait to do so until it learned whether Mr. Ajello had any 
concerns. 

Other Business 

John Dorr Nature Lab/220 Nettleton Hollow Road/Permit #IW-07-11/ Reduction in Scope of 
Project: The Commission compared the latest plan, "Utility Plan," by Arthur Howland & Assoc., dated 
3/18/08 with a previous map, "Proposed Site Development Plan," by Arthur Howland Assoc., revised to 
4/11/07 and reviewed the 4/17/08 letter from Mr. Szymanski, which detailed the six revisions to the 
original approved plan. Mr. Ajello noted that two of the more significant revisions were that a 
bunkhouse had been moved from its location 20 feet from a stream to over 100 feet away and a 
building footprint was reduced by 700 sq. ft. The commissioners considered whether to ask Mr. Ajello 
to study the revisions before the next meeting to determine whether there was any increase in scope in 
relation to the wetlands on the property or whether it could act tonight. Mr. Ajello noted that many of 
the proposed activities were approximately 300 ft. from the wetlands and said he had informed the 
applicant that a formal request to revise the permit was not required because the proposal was a clear 
reduction in scope. Mrs. D. Hill disagreed, saying that all revisions require approval by the 
Commission and that a $25 revision fee was due. After a brief review, it was the consensus that the 
revisions were a net improvement and that the stormwater management plan had been thoroughly 
reviewed when the application was first submitted. 

MOTION: To approve revisions to Permit #IW-07-11 issued to the John Dorr Nature Lab/220 Nettleton 
Hollow Road, which reduce the scope of the project as detailed in Mr. Szymanski's 4/17/08 letter and 
his map, U-1, revised to 3/18/08. By Mr. Bedini, seconded by Mrs. Hill, and passed 5-0. 

Discussion Re: Dock Augers: Mr. Ajello advised the Commission about a new kind of dock anchor; an 
auger that screws into the bottom of the lake and may be removed seasonally. Mr. Picton said he was 
not concerned if the auger only went down 1 ft. into the lake bottom, was less than 6 inches in 
diameter, did not stir up much silt, and was temporary. Mr. LaMuniere, however, was concerned 
because the installation would stir up an unknown amount of sediment and it was not known how wave 
action would affect the augers. Mr. Picton noted that the Zoning Commission had not asked the Inland 
Wetlands Commission for input on anchoring systems for floating docks. Mr. Bedini thought the 
Zoning Commission should be concerned about who owns the lake bottom before granting permission 
for the use of these augers. 

Enforcement 

Andersson/35-45 Gunn Hill Road: Mr. Ajello reported that Mr. Andersson proposed to plant a buffer 
in the upland review area to screen his property from the adjoining property. 

Brown/127 West Shore Road: Mr. Ajello noted he had received a draft "injunction," which he would 
review for Atty. Olson before it was issued. Mr. Picton asked to review Mr. Ajello's analysis before it 
was sent to Atty. Olson. Mr. LaMuniere pointed out that the area to be restored was the 33 ft. section of 
wall to the east of the dock. 

Carron/58 Gunn Hill Road: Mr. Ajello will inspect the ongoing work. 

DiBenedetto/214 Calhoun Street: Mr. Picton noted it was the Commission's goal to make sure the 
forestry work being done was consistent with Land Tech's restoration plan. He said Land Tech's latest 
report discussed substantial changes in the trees marked to be cut on the DiBenedetto property, found 
the project was progressing in a manner consistent with its recommendations, and noted the planting of 
a lot of plant material was imminent. Mr. Thomson thought that Land Tech's plan was in keeping with 
best management practices and that Mr. DiBenedetto had demonstrated his willingness to work within 
Land Tech's well designed program, and so there would be no point in delaying the resumption of 



work. He did recommend, however, that Mr. Ajello reinspect the site and confirm that only the trees 
still marked would be cut. He admitted there previously had been problems with cutting done by the 
workers, but said now there were flags posted on site and the workers were being more closely 
managed. Mr. LaMuniere agreed with this approach. He did not think the Commission should monitor 
the newly planted material for two years before allowing the remainder of the trees to be cut. Mr. 
Picton and Mrs. D. Hill thought there should be another formal inspection before the cutting resumed to 
see that some of the replanting had actually been done, to make sure the trees to be cut were correctly 
marked, and to ensure there would be no cutting on the steep slopes. They noted this would cause only 
a two week delay in which time a great deal of vegetation could be planted. Mr. Bedini offered a 
compromise that the cutting be allowed to resume with a site inspection scheduled prior to the next 
meeting, and if it was found during the site inspection that the work was not progressing as promised, 
they would be immediately ordered to stop. 

MOTION: To schedule a site inspection of the DiBenedetto property at 212-214 Calhoun Street before 
the next meeting to check on the replanting and the marking of the trees to be cut and at the next 
meeting to consider the findings of the site inspection and to take any action needed regarding this 
project at that time. By Mr. Picton, seconded by Mrs. Hill. 

A lengthy discussion followed. The points raised included: Planting could be continued in sections 1, 2, 
and 3 but this could interfere with the removal of the trees still to be cut in the interior sections 4 and 5. 
The Commission was paying Land Tech from the $10,000 bond posted by Mr. DiBenedetto, which was 
to be used partly for the consultants' fees and partly to ensure the work was properly completed. Mr. 
Picton said he wanted to make sure that some of the restoration planting was in place before more trees 
were cut as the entire bond would not be available to ensure replanting. Mr. Thomson thought it was 
important that the owner know that the Commission was pleased with the progress made to date. Mr. 
Ajello advised the Commission that Mr. DiBenedetto was anxious to start cutting again, especially now 
while there was dry weather. Mr. LaMuniere recommended that the Commission continue to monitor 
the denuded area, to schedule a reinspection as soon as possible, and to meet on site with Land Tech to 
learn more about the restoration/reforestation process. Ms. Turoczi's 4/22/08 "Sketch," planting plan 
was noted. Mr. Picton revised his motion as follows: 

MOTION: To schedule a site inspection of the DiBenedetto property at 212-214 Calhoun Street as soon 
as possible and if the Commission is satisfied with the planting in sections 1, 2, and 3 and with the 
cutting of trees in the back, the project can proceed as marked on the sketch plan by Ms. Turoczi. By 
Mr. Picton. 

Mr. Thomson then made the motion below and Mr. Picton withdrew both of his motions. 

MOTION: To allow Mr. DiBenedetto to proceed with the cutting of trees and replanting of the forest as 
planned by Land Tech and Ms. Turoczi, noting that in addition to the reforestation project, the removal 
of invasives is a primary concern, which is a separate issue and which also must be addressed by Mr. 
DiBenedetto. By Mr. Thomson, seconded by Mr. LaMuniere. 

Mr. Thomson thought if the Commission was not willing to accept Land Tech's opinion, it should hire a 
different consultant. He also felt that Mr. DiBenedetto's most recent actions were evidence of his 
cooperation and that it appeared he had complied with Land Tech's plan. Mr. Bedini said he would 
vote, yes, because when a site inspection was conducted, if the work was not according to plan, he 
could be ordered to stop. 

Vote: 3-2. Mr. Picton and Mrs. D. Hill voted, No, because they wanted verification that the ongoing 
work to date satisfactorily complied with the plans by Land Tech before granting permission for the 
work to proceed. 



Mr. Thomson noted it was the responsibility of the Enforcement Officer to inspect the site regularly to 
ensure compliance with the Land Tech plan. He asked Mr. Ajello to make frequent inspections. Mr. 
Picton and Mr. LaMuniere said the commissioners should also monitor the site. 

Ebner/18A Mt. Tom Road: Mr. Ajello said he would soon send Mr. Ebner a letter with the 
Commission's instructions as had been requested at the last meeting. 

Gray-Dunlap/26 Painter Ridge Road/#IW-07-V18: It was noted that no one attended the scheduled 
site inspection. Mr. Picton said he had asked Mr. Sabin, landscape architect, for specific information on 
the depth of the soil, where the watercourse would be rerouted, and a restoration plan. He noted it 
looked like the clearing had been done without any changes in grade. Mr. Picton recommended that the 
natural biological wetlands system be restored to within 8 ft. of both sides of the driveway. In response 
to a question from Mr. Ajello, he said a wood chip path and a narrow footbridge would not bother him. 
Mr. Ajello noted he had sent a notice of violation, not an enforcement order. 

Lodsin/78 Litchfield Turnpike/#IW-07-V12: Mr. Ajello said he had contacted the Army Corps of 
Engineers and would soon send it a copy of the file. Mr. LaMuniere stated that he estimated that 
between 8,000 and 10,000 sq. ft. had been disturbed; the threshold for Army Corps involvement is 5000 
sq. ft. 

Peloquin/1 New Preston Hill Road/#IW-07-V13: Mr. Ajello said Mr. Peloquin had submitted a 
landscaping plan, "Planting Plan," dated 4/18/08 and he read the 4/21/08 letter from Ms. Ashbaugh, 
landscape architect. He asked if from the Commission's point of view the proposed 35 ft. X 30 ft. stone 
patio with 2 to 3 inches of grass growing between the stones would be considered an impervious 
surface. He noted considering the proposed garden areas, the landscaping was 50% permeable. It was 
the consensus that would be OK, but that an application to correct a violation was required. 

Rumsey Hall School/184 Romford Road: Mr. Ajello said the site was in good condition. 

Slaymaker/17 Sunset Lane: Mr. Ajello said the owner would soon submit a revised application. Mr. 
Bedini asked the other commissioners if they had considered moving the septic system to the front yard 
to be mitigation for a larger house footprint. Mr. Picton said he did not. He said the back yard had to be 
restored and the front yard septic location was a feasible and prudent alternative that had to be 
considered. The commissioners reviewed their opinions expressed at the last meeting regarding 
whether such a large expansion of a house located entirely in wetlands should be approved. Both Mr. 
Bedini and Mr. LaMuniere referred to the DEP statement read at the last meeting that degradation of a 
site does not justify further degradation. Most of the commissioners supported a second story addition 
over the existing house rather than an expansion of the footprint. 

Wright/59 Scofield Hill Road: Mr. Ajello is waiting for Mr. Wright to plant the hillside. 

Rubler/240 Wykeham Road: Mr. Ajello reported new upland clearing on flat areas and selective 
clearing along the road. He will monitor the property for erosion problems and noted the Commission 
is still holding a bond. 

Janco/11 June Road/#IW-07-V9: Mr. Ajello is waiting for further action regarding the removal of the 
stairs and platform. 

Howard/99 West Shore Road: This enforcement matter has been sent to Atty. Zizka. 

Mrs. D. Hill questioned why Reinhardt and Rubler were not included in the EO report. Mr. Picton 
asked that all enforcement actions be included in the report. 

Other Business 

Revision of the Regulations: Work on the revisions continues. 



Administrative Business: Mr. Picton reported that he had talked to the First Selectman regarding 
hiring a consultant to review how the Commission and staff conduct their business and what 
improvements could be made. Because Mr. Lyon had not yet responded, Mr. Bedini will contact him 
again. 

Legal Matters: All of the pending enforcement issues that had been forwarded to Atty. Zizka were 
noted. The commissioners thought that Atty. Zizka had discussed some constructive approaches when 
he met with the Commission in executive session on April 16. 

MOTION: To adjourn the meeting. By Mr. Bedini. 

Mr. Picton adjourned the meeting at 9:50 p.m. 

FILED SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

Respectfully submitted, 

Janet M. Hill 

Land Use Coordinator 

April 9, 2008
MEMBERS PRESENT: Mr. Bedini, Mrs. D. Hill, Mr. LaMuniere, Mr. Picton, Mr. Thomson 

ALTERNATE PRESENT: Mr. Wadelton 

ALTERNATE ABSENT: Mr. Bohan 

STAFF PRESENT: Mr. Ajello, Mrs. J. Hill 

ALSO PRESENT: Mr. Fleishmann, Atty. Malley, Mr. Nadeau, Nr. Neff, Mr. McMorrow, Mr./Mrs. 
Redstone, Atty. Kelly, Mr. Guliano, Mr. Dunlap, Ms. Gray 

Mr. Picton called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. and seated Members Bedini, Hill, LaMuniere, 
Picton, and Thomson. 

MOTION: To add subsequent business not already posted on the agenda: Enforcement: Gray-
Dunlap/26 Painter Ridge Road/Unauthorized Clearing, Soil Disturbance. By Mrs. Hill, seconded by 
Mr. Bedini, and passed 5-0. 

Consideration of the Minutes 

The 3/26/08 Regular Meeting minutes were accepted as corrected. 

Page 1: Add: Mrs. Lancaster and Mrs. Pollock to those present. 

Page 1: 2nd line from bottom: "hat" should be "had." 

Page 6: Under Hock-Fiedorowicz: 5 lines from bottom: After "proposed" insert: "to be affected by road 
drainage...." 

Page 6: At the end of the same line: After "major" add: "stormwater" issues.... 

Page 11: Last line: Change: "hearing" to "meeting." 

MOTION: To accept the 3/26/08 Regular Meeting minutes as amended. By Mr. Bedini, seconded by 
Mrs. Hill, and passed 5-0. 

Posted: April 19, 2008



Regarding the 3/12/08 Regular Meeting minutes, Mrs. D. Hill said regarding DiBenedetto that she had 
seen bluebirds, but did not say they were actually nesting on site and regarding Slaymaker that she did, 
indeed, consider the proposed construction of the addition in wetlands to be a significant activity. 

The 4/1/08 Gruson/62 Frisbie Road site inspection minutes were accepted as corrected. In the third 
paragraph it should refer to: "the old Frisbie Road." 

MOTION: To accept the 4/1/08 Gruson site inspection minutes as amended. By Mr. Bedini, seconded 
by Mr. Thomson, and passed 5-0. 

MOTION: To accept the 4/1/08 Hock-Fiedorowicz site inspection minutes as submitted. By Mr. Picton, 
seconded by Mrs. Hill, and passed 5-0. 

MOTION: To accept the 4/1/08 Ebner site inspection minutes as written. By Mrs. Hill, seconded by 
Mr. Picton, and passed 5-0. 

MOTION: To accept the 4/1/08 Lancaster site inspection minutes as written. By Mr. Picton, seconded 
by Mr. Bedini, and passed 5-0. 

Pending Applications 

Fleishmann/219 Roxbury Road/#IW-08-05/Construct House and Barn, Remove Shed, Relocate 
Caboose: The maps, "Excavation and Drainage Plan," by Mr. Riordan, revised to 4/9/08 and "Inland 
Wetland Application," revised to 4/9/08 and the 4/9/08 report by Mr. Temple were reviewed. Mr. 
Temple found that 1) the seepage along Rt. 199 was not a wetland and 2) the man made pond was not a 
vernal pool because it has a permanent outlet. Mr. Fleishmann pointed out the proposed areas of 
regrading and filling and the location of silt fencing, which, he said was also the limit of disturbance. 
Mr. Picton asked him to add a notation that the silt fence was the limit of disturbance line and Mr. 
Fleishmann did so. He also added a notation to the map that there would be no filling outside the 
proposed excavation area. Mr. Picton also asked for the addition of a note to state that the limit of 
disturbance line was also the limit of clearing line. The commissioners reviewed the list of information 
that Mr. Fleishmann had been asked to provide to make sure it had all been submitted. It was noted that 
the intermittent watercourse flowing in and out of the pond was not shown on either map and that 
information about who had done the original wetlands flagging had not been provided. Mr. LaMuniere 
said that although the maps were not as precise as those usually submitted to the Commission, the 
added notations provided the necessary specificity. Mr. Picton noted that the Commission had not 
identified any immediate wetlands concerns. Mrs. D. Hill noted it was understood that the caboose was 
not to traverse the wetlands when it was moved. 

MOTION: To approve Application #IW-08-05 submitted by Mr. Fleishmann to construct a house and 
barn, remove a shed, and relocate the caboose at 219 Roxbury Road per the map with handwritten 
notations dated 4/9/08. By Mr. Bedini, seconded by Mrs. Hill, and passed 5-0. 

Gruson/62 Frisbie Road/#IW-08-10/Pond Maintenance: Mr. Neff, engineer, said the breach on the 
east side of the dam had grown from 6 to 8 inches wide to 3 feet wide. He said he would submit revised 
plans to extend the dam 5 to 6 feet into the bank to more safely hold it. The map, "Pond Maintenance 
Plan," by Mr. Neff, dated 2/20/08 was reviewed. In response to the concerns raised by the Commission 
at the last meeting, he suggested that the deposition area could be moved across the road to a 100 ft. by 
300 ft. area, where the excavated material would be spread to a depth of 6 inches. Mr. Bedini noted the 
construction sequence called for stripping the top soil, spreading the excavated material, and then 
putting the top soil back. He asked if this would be stable in case of a heavy rain. Mr. Neff stated that 
the work would be done during the dry time of year, the material would be spread along the contour 
line, and that time of year was good for germination. In contrast, Mr. Picton pointed out that the 
originally proposed location could be unstable for over a month on a 20% to 25% slope. Mr. Picton 



asked if it was the best solution to create basin sides all around the pond. Mr. Neff said that he did not 
propose to alter the existing sides, would not over excavate in terms of depth, and would excavate 
approximately 500 yards of material. The most appropriate location for the deposition of this material 
was again considered. Mr. Neff noted that the grades were better on the other side of Frisbie Road, but 
it was farther to truck the material there. Mrs. D. Hill asked if the seeps near the originally proposed 
area were significant. Mr. Picton said that due to the location of these seeps and evidence of scouring in 
this area, he was not comfortable with using it as the deposition area. Mr. Bedini said a temporary 
gravel access would be needed for equipment to reach the deposition site on the other side of Frisbie 
Road, but Mr. Ajello said this would not be needed if a track excavator was used. It was agreed that if 
the field originally proposed for the spoils was to be used, the wetlands would have to be flagged. Mr. 
Neff stated that the owner was hesitant to provide a "full blown planting plan" because his application 
was only for pond maintenance and repair of the dam. Mrs. D. Hill thought that Mr. Gruson should 
agree to plant some plants without necessarily submitting a complete planting plan. Mr. Picton 
proposed an emergent area at the north inlet with one third of the underwater slopes at 4:1 so they 
would be shallow enough to support a variety of aquatic plants to help maintain the ecology of the pond 
and an area around one third of the perimeter of the pond where native shrubs would be planted to 
provide shade. He noted this was an opportunity to enhance the wetlands environment and to mitigate 
the accumulated affects of one dimensional landscaping. Mr. Neff said he would discuss this with Mr. 
Gruson. Mr. Picton asked for more information on how the pond would be flushed. Mr. Neff referred to 
the sequence of construction and said the drain would not be opened. Mr. Picton asked that this 
specifically be stated on the plan. Mr. Picton asked Mr. Neff to try to come up with a plan for pumping 
out the pond that would leave an undisturbed basin for underwater ecology rather than removing the 
entire underwater ecosystem. Mr. Neff was not sure if this would be possible because the pond was 
only 2/10 of an acre. This application will be discussed again at the next meeting. 

Slaymaker/17 Sunset Lane/#IW-08-13/Repair Septic System, Construct Addition to Existing 
Dwelling: New maps by Berkshire Engineering entitled, "B100a Sketch Prepared for Adept Builders," 
dated 4/4/08 were reviewed. Mr. McMorrow, engineer, stated there had been good perc test results in 
the front yard and so he had designed a septic system plan for 2 bedrooms for that area. He noted the 
current system is in wetlands, while the proposed new front yard system would be smaller and 19 feet 
from the wetlands. He also noted it would be a pumped system, the existing wells would have to be 
abandoned, and a new well would be drilled in the back. Mr. Picton stated that this plan was an 
improvement. Mr. Picton asked who had decided to drain the back yard. Mr. McMorrow said it had 
been indicated on the 1993 septic plan by Mr. Neff and the Health Dept. had been involved. Mr. Picton 
noted that this current violation was a good example of why the Inland Wetlands Commission should 
be involved in septic designs in or near wetlands, adding that both the WEO and the Health Dept. 
should consider wetlands early in the application process and the property owner should know the 
regulations and complete the application process before doing any site work. It was noted the other two 
aspects of the application were the proposed addition and restoration of the disturbed areas in the back 
portion of the property. Mr. Picton asked if the scope of the addition had been revised. Atty. Malley 
stated that due to the proposed septic improvements, the size of the proposed addition had not been 
decreased. Mr. Bedini, however, saw the improved septic plan as mitigation for the unauthorized 
curtain drain and tree clearing, which, he said, had been done without an indication that the septic 
system had been failing in the first place and without the exploration of feasible and prudent 
alternatives. Mr. LaMuniere voiced his concern that the approval of the proposed addition would 
establish a precedent for the Commission. He noted the addition was a significant increase in the size of 
the house, twice the size of the existing floor plan, and would be completely in wetlands. Mr. Bedini 
noted that the Commission had not allowed new construction in wetlands and said he did not support 
doing so now when the owner could propose a second story addition on the same footprint. Mr. Picton 



noted that the DEP publication, "Guidelines, Upland Review Area Regulations, Connecticut's Inland 
Wetlands and Watercourses Act," states that degraded conditions should not be used to justify further 
degradations and said that the size of the addition was very large compared to the existing structure. 
Mrs. D. Hill noted the proposed addition was two times the size of the existing dwelling and would 
require additional driveway. She recommended that the applicant investigate how to enlarge the 
building without increasing its footprint. Mr. Picton suggested another alternative might be to increase 
the size of the house by adding a few feet all around the perimeter in the area immediately surrounding 
the house, which had previously been regraded and was not functioning as wetlands. Mr. Ajello noted 
there was a deck on the previous plan that was not shown on the current map. Atty. Malley asked what 
the Commission thought about construction on piers. Mr. LaMuniere still thought it would require a lot 
of work to build up on the existing foundation, but that sono tubes for a deck would not cause too much 
damage. Mr. Picton thought construction on piers would be a significant activity in the wetlands. Mr. 
Bedini thought that if a new foundation was needed, piers would make sense, but said he was against 
increasing the size of the footprint whether it was on piers or not because new construction in the 
wetlands could not be justified. He added that it would be unfair to say that the owner could not rebuild 
on the existing footprint. Mrs. D. Hill, Mr. LaMuniere, and Mr. Picton agreed. Atty. Malley complained 
that the Commission was not taking into account the quality of the wetlands, which was lawn, nor the 
proposal to improve the septic system. He also thought it was unfair of the Commission to think that 
the owner should have known the regulations before purchasing the property. Mr. Picton responded that 
if someone buys a bungalow, he can't be sure he's got a house until he gets all the required permits. 
Atty. Malley said his client was applying only to moderately expand his house and to provide 
mitigation in the back. Mr. Bedini asked how the wetlands were enhanced by the installation of the 
curtain drain. Mr. Nadeau, contractor, said his client did not want to decrease the size of the addition, 
pointed out that the wetlands had been disturbed for "80 years," and offered to plant additional trees in 
the back. Mr. Picton asked if the commissioners thought enough material had been submitted to 
approve the new septic system. Mr. Bedini stated there was no point in having separate votes on the 
addition and the septic system because if the addition was not approved, the owner would not install the 
new septic system. Mr. Picton noted that the commissioners had discussed the proposed addition and 
the majority had spoken against it and said he did not find the authority in the regulations for the 
Commission to approve a new structure in the wetlands. Mr. Thomson, Mr. LaMuniere, and Mr. Bedini 
said they were prepared to act on the application. Mr. Nadeau asked whether the Commission believed 
that removing the existing septic system would result in further degradation of the wetlands; he did not 
think so. Mr. Picton replied that the expansion of the house was not an offset to the replacement of an 
antique septic system. 

MOTION: To deny Application #IW-08-13 submitted by Mr. Slaymaker to repair the septic system and 
build an addition to the existing dwelling at 17 Sunset Lane as proposed on the map, "B100a Sketch," 
by Berkshire Engineering and Surveying, dated 4/4/08 because: 1. the addition is proposed in wetlands 
and its construction would be a significant activity in the wetlands, 2. the addition is very large; 
approximately two times the size of the existing footprint, 3. the Commission has never approved new 
construction in a wetlands and does not want to set a precedent by doing so, 4. the applicant has 
feasible and prudent alternatives he could propose such as decreasing the size of the addition, changing 
the configuration of the addition, adding a second story addition over the existing foundation, etc., and 
5. the Commission cites the June 1997 DEP document, "Guidelines, Upland Review Area Regulations, 
Connecticut's Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Act," which states that degraded conditions should not 
be used to justify further degradations. By Mr. Bedini, seconded by Mrs. Hill, and passed 5-0. (Motion 
approved, Application denied) 

Mr. Picton noted that a cease and desist order was still in place (actually, a notice of violation had been 
issued), no further work should be conducted in the wetlands, and the wetlands must be restored. 



Guliano/19 Winston Drive/#IW-08-14/Replace Pool: Mr. Picton noted that this application had been 
discussed at the last meeting and the Commission was not waiting for any additional information. Mr. 
Guliano presented the sketch plan dated 3/18/08 and noted the distance from the side of the house to 
the proposed pool was 17 feet. The plan was not drawn to scale so he wrote in this measurement on it. 
Mr. Picton asked if Mr. Ajello had reviewed the application and determined it was complete, and Mr. 
Ajello responded that he had. It was noted the existing pool is 846 sq. feet, while the proposed pool will 
be 828 sq. ft. 

MOTION: To approve Application #IW-08-14 submitted by Mr. Guliano to replace the swimming pool 
at 19 Winston Drive per the map dated 3/18/08 with notes revised to 4/9/08. By Mr. Bedini, seconded 
by Mrs. Hill, and passed 5-0. 

Hock/Fiedorowicz/49 Mt. Tom Road/#IW-08-15/Driveway Crossing: The map, "Driveway Wetlands 
Crossing," by Mr. Wilson, dated January 2008 was reviewed. It was noted the existing 18 ft. long 
culvert would be replaced with a 30 ft. culvert, which would be long enough to accommodate the 
necessary regrading along the side of the driveway. It was also noted that silt fencing was shown on the 
map and that a construction detail sheet had been submitted. Mr. Ajello noted there were wetland areas 
on both sides of the driveway approximately 100 ft. in from Mt. Tom Road and guessed they were 
connected and that another culvert would be required. He also thought other cross culverts would be 
required further along the access. It was the consensus to ask Mr. Wilson, engineer, to investigate both 
of these issues. Mr. Bedini also asked what would be done with the rock removed from the ledge and 
how the water would be handled on the south side of the driveway. Mr. Ajello noted that the plan 
should show the limit of disturbance and clearing and these should be kept as close to the driveway as 
possible. Mr. Picton asked that all work, including installation of the silt fence, be kept a minimum of 
20 feet from the wetlands except within 50 feet of the crossing and that the depth of fill over the culvert 
be provided. 

Also on the adjoining property, the commissioners thought logging was being done directly in 
wetlands. Mrs. D. Hill asked if Mr. Ajello had signed off on a timber harvesting application. Mr. Ajello 
said he would make an inspection. 

New Applications 

Redstone/83 West Morris Road/#IW-08-16/Inground Pool: The sketch map by the owner and the 
survey map, "Map Prepared for Mark E. and James F. Picton," by Mr. Howland, dated October 1988, 
which showed the location of the flagged wetlands, were reviewed. Mr. Picton said he had not owned 
the property for 16 years and so did not have a conflict of interest. It was noted the proposed pool was 
70 feet from the flagged wetlands. Mr. Ajello said he had inspected the property, the house location was 
"high and dry," and the proposed pool location was in an area that was already lawn. Mrs. Redstone 
said that no additional clearing would be required. Mr. Bedini asked if the limit of disturbance was 
defined by the location of the silt fence and whether a 20 to 25 ft. wide area around the pool was a large 
enough area in which to work. Mr. Ajello said it would be tight, but it would work. He noted that 
construction equipment would enter from the south and that the excavated material would be 
transported to a site sloping away from the wetlands. Mr. Picton asked for "plenty" of buffer area 
between the pool and the wetlands. Mr. Ajello noted that the existing vegetation within 35 feet of the 
wetlands was long grasses and ferns. It was noted the proposed pool was 16 ft. by 40 ft. plus a 4 ft. 
wide deck. Mrs. Redstone explained that alternate locations for the pool would not work because 
elsewhere the line of vision from the house to the pool would be blocked by a hill or the garage. Mr. 
LaMuniere asked if a cartridge filter would be used. Mrs. Redstone said it would. The commissioners 
determined that a site inspection was not necessary. 

Enforcement 



Gray-Dunlap/26 Painter Ridge Road/Unauthorized Clearing, Soil Disturbance: Mr. Ajello 
circulated photos of the recent work, noted there were three intermittent streams and a wetland on the 
property, and advised the Commission that a notice of violation had been mailed yesterday. Mr. Picton 
read this letter dated 4/8/08. Mr. Ajello said that Mr. Sabin, landscape architect, had been hired, but had 
not yet had time to draw up a restoration plan. Mr. Picton asked for specific information on the extent 
of the fill, the drainage work, the redirection of the drainage flow, and the reestablishment of the native 
understory. Mr. Dunlap noted that top soil had been deposited along both sides of the driveway and 
trees and shrubs had been cut. He thought many of these plants would regrow on their own. He also 
noted that the porch on the house had to be replaced due to settling and that Mr. Ajello had advised him 
a Wetlands permit was required. He said that Mr. Sabin would include the porch work in his mitigation 
plan. A site inspection was scheduled for Tuesday, April 15, 2008 at 4:00 p.m. 

Lancaster/244 West Shore Road/#IW-07-V16/Unauthorized Clearing: Mr. Picton reported that Mr. 
Pollock had given the Commission a complete explanation of the strategy of the recent clearing, noting 
that 75% of the canopy of the larger trees along the lake had been maintained and that invasives and 
several smaller sized trees had been removed. He thought Mr. Ajello and Mr. Pollock had had a 
misunderstanding about the cutting of the larger material. In the future he asked Mr. Ajello to take on 
site notes on a carbon pad so that each party would have an immediate record of what transpired. Mr. 
Ajello said he was pleased that Mr. Lancaster responded to the notice of violation and that he wanted 
him to understand that the lake shore buffer is important and should be respected. He said he had a 
problem with the removal of the invasives on the steep shoreline slope and he encouraged replanting 
there to hold the soil. Mr. Picton stated the activity that occurred should have had a permit. Mr. 
LaMuniere agreed, saying that all work along the shore line needs a permit. Atty. Kelly specifically 
asked the Commission if it considered the work done to be a regulated activity. The five seated 
commissioners said, yes. Mr. Bedini added that although everyone agreed a permit was required, it did 
not mean that "wholesale destruction" had taken place. Mr. Picton said the Commission would make a 
list of recommendations for maintaining a healthy natural buffer along the lake shore. Atty. Kelly said 
that would be OK if it was advisory only. Mr. Ajello noted he had already sent Mr. Lancaster 
streamside buffer literature. The list of recommendations was reviewed: 1) No further removal of trees 
or woody understory except for the suppression on invasive species on the lake shore bank. 2) Allow 
the natural wood understory growth to fill in on the bank. 3) The shoreline vegetation west of the large 
oak should not be removed. 4) Plant native woody shrubs or trees in the depression in the bank that 
needs stabilization. 5) There should be no further unpermitted work. Atty. Kelly said his clients would 
be disappointed that the Commission considered this a violation. He asked what the minimum acreage 
was in which landscaping can occur as an unregulated activity and thought the Commission should not 
have made the determination that the work done was a regulated activity without first knowing the 
answer. Mr. LaMuniere thought the Commission and Atty. Kelly differed on the definition of 
"landscaping." Atty. Kelly referred the Commission to Section 4 of the Regulations. He stated the 
Commission had not right to regulate landscaping that may pose a risk to the wetlands if it was done on 
a minimum sized lot. Mr. Bedini read Section 4.1.d and asked Atty. Kelly if he thought that gave the 
property owner the right to do whatever he wants even though it is regulated elsewhere in the 
document. Atty. Kelly said, yes, that was his position. He then submitted a letter dated 4/9/08, which he 
said was a compilation of responses to Mr. Ajello's enforcement letter. 

Brown/127 West Shore Road/Unauthorized Work Along Shoreline: It was noted that Atty. Kelly 
and Mr. Ajello had met to try to resolve this matter. Atty. Kelly said he was trying to determine which 
areas were subject to restoration and was trying to find photos of the area between the boat launch and 
the stairs. A photo dated 9/06 was reviewed. Mr. Picton stated that the restoration work done to date 
was a good example of shoreline restoration. 



Mr. Bedini asked Atty, Kelly if there was a legal definition of "shoreline." Atty. Kelly thought that any 
surveyor would have this information and he would pass it on to the Commission if he found it. 

DiBenedetto/212-214 Calhoun Street/Restoration of Understory: It was noted that Mr. Ajello had 
sent a letter to Mr. DiBenedetto as had been requested at the last meeting. 

Ebner/18A Mt. Tom Road/Unauthorized Shoreline Clearing: The 4/1/08 site inspection minutes 
were reviewed. It was noted that Mr. Ebner had been instructed that there could be no further cutting of 
trees, the view could be maintained in the 50 ft. corridor between the deck and the pond, but outside 
this corridor and except for the septic area, the understory should be allowed to reestablish, there could 
be no stump removal, and there could be no soil disturbance. Mr. Picton asked that Mr. Ajello write to 
Mr. Ebner to inform him of these restrictions and that he include a copy of the 4/1 minutes with the 
letter. Mrs. D. Hill asked if a citation should be issued. Mr. Ajello did not think so because there was no 
earthwork, nor was there massive clearing, and Mr. Ebner had responded promptly when asked to stop. 

25 Mt. Tom Road/New Dwelling: Mrs. D. Hill reported activity near the pond, away from the new 
house, which was out of the upland review area. Mr. Picton asked Mr. Ajello to inspect the site. Mr. 
Ajello said there had been no disturbance near the pond. 

Peloquin/1 New Preston Hill Road/#IW-07-V13/Unauthorized Clearcutting, Excavation, 
Stonework: The site plan that Mr. Peloquin promised still had not been submitted. Mr. Picton asked 
Mr. Ajello to write to him to instruct him to immediately seed and hay all disturbed areas. 

DiBenedetto/212-214 Calhoun Street/Restoration of the Understory: The 4/5/08 letter from Mr. 
DiBenedetto to Mr. Ajello was circulated. Generally, the commissioners thought that Mr. DiBenedetto 
did not understand why the Commission wanted the areas that had been cut to be restored before 
additional areas were cut. Mr. LaMuniere noted that the consensus of the commissioners had been that 
too many trees had been cut. Mr. Picton noted Mr. DiBenedetto had been asked to follow up with 
restoration work for each phase before going on to the next phase. Mr. Ajello explained that Mr. 
DiBenedetto was anxious to complete the cutting and then begin replanting this year; that he objected 
to waiting three years to see whether the restoration efforts were successful before he could resume 
removing trees. Mr. Picton and Mr. LaMuniere thought it was important to ensure that the invasives 
were under control, because if they weren't, nothing else would be able to grow. Mr. Picton added that 
native shrubs that could have been left were cut along with the invasives. Mr. Ajello said that Mr. 
DiBenedetto was concerned that the Commission, rather than Land Tech, was managing the project. 
Mr. Picton noted the Commission had asked Land Tech that the work be carried out in stages, but Mr. 
Ajello said Land Tech wanted to proceed with the cutting now. Mr. Picton said this property had a 
history where restorations previously ordered had not been successfully completed, and so the 
Commission needed to see results before any more cutting was done. A lengthy discussion ensued. Mr. 
Bedini suggested that Mr. Ajello ask Land Tech to support the phasing of the project and that Land 
Tech then advise Mr. DiBenedetto on how the work should proceed. Mr. Picton said he would call Land 
Tech as soon as possible. 

Administrative Business 

Revision of the Regulations: The commissioners discussed how to define the upland review area. 
Increasing the upland review area to within 200 ft. of wetlands and watercourse, increasing it to 200 
feet only when the proposed activity is within 100 ft. of slopes exceeding 12%, or leaving it at 100 feet 
with a more specific definition of steep slopes and under what conditions the upland review area could 
be expanded were considered. Upon receiving input, Mr. Picton said he would compose a draft, which 
would be circulated prior to the next meeting. It was also suggested that timber harvesting be added to 
the list of regulated activities or at least add a reference to the Town Timber Harvesting Ordinance. 



Application Form: The updated form had been circulated prior to the meeting. The one suggestion 
received was that "Use Form B for Exemptions" should be added to page 1. 

Communications 

The Commission asked Mr. Ajello to try to set up a meeting with Dr. Kortmann on shoreline ecology. 

MOTION: To go into Executive Session at 11:07 p.m. to discuss pending litigation: Andersson. By 
Mrs. Hill, seconded by Mr. Picton, passed 5-0. 

MOTION: To end Executive Session at 11:17 p.m. By Mr. Picton, seconded by Mr. Bedini, passed 5-0 

MOTION: To adjourn the meeting. By Mr. Picton. 

FILED SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

Respectfully submitted, 

By Janet M. Hill, Land Use Coordinator 


	April 23, 2008
	April 9, 2008

